
CITY OF LOUISBURG, KANSAS
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

MAY 2, 2016

The Council of the City of Louisburg, Kan sas met at 6:30 p.m. in regular  
session in the City Hall Council Chambers.  Mayor Marty Southard presiding.

Council Members David Cannon, Steve Town, Dave Maddax, Jean Carder,
Carol Aust

          City Administrator Nathan Law
City Clerk Traci Storey
City Attorney Kelly Stohs
Police Chief Tim Bauer
Press Jon VanPelt
Visitors

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Councilmember Dave Maddax led the pledge of allegiance.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

Councilmember  David Cannon  moved ,  seconded by Councilmember Jean 
Carder  and  carried  5 -0 , to adopt the consent agenda to include adoption of the 
agenda, approval of the  April 18 ,  2016  Council Minutes, and approval of the bills 
list.

VISITORS

None

PUBLIC COMMENTS

  None

DEPARTMENT REPORTS



  City Administrator Nathan Law suggested the Council take the next step for 
the Waste Water Treatment Plant Project.  The next step is to secure an Owner’s 
Engineer   for the City.  Law is weighing KDHE regulations regarding alternative 
delivery methods (Design/Build) procurement under the State Revolving Fund and 
will put together a bid document for engineering services accordingly.  Owner’s 
engineer functions separately from the design/build team, and serves to oversee the 
team’s operation and progress.  This allows the City to have an engineer they are 
comfortable with oversee the engineering services of the construction team that the 
City may not be familiar with depending on the RFQ limitations for building such 
a team.  Administrator Law will return with the resulting bid document for 
services.

CITY ATTORNEYS REPORT

None.

COUNCIL REPORTS

Councilmember Carder:    Councilmember Jean Carder said the City Wide 
Clean Up looks like it went well.  Over 63 ¾ tons were picked up from residents 
Administrator Law said.  Carder said it is a great service for all our residents and 
would like to see it done quarterly.  Councilmembers all agreed and would like to 
put that into the next contract.

Councilmember Cannon:    Councilmember David Cannon wanted to thank 
all of City Staff for their hard work on the water leaks.  Cannon asked about the 
state water issue.  Administrator Law said that was one of the items that was talked 
about at his conference last week.  The last presentation of the meeting was in 
regard to the future of water in Kansas, a point-counterpoint discussion from 
representatives of the State and a City/County Manager with significant experience 
in the subject.  The result of this discussion - two varied ideas of where the future 
lies for water (neither overly positive based on current consumption trends in 
western Kansas  regarding the Ogal l ala Aquifer being drawn down ), and two strong 
opinions of who will pay for it (either everyone, or just those th at benefit directly 
from it).

Councilmember Aust:    Councilmember Carol Aust asked what is going on 
with the Phoenix restaurant.  Administrator Law said a person came in last week to 
inquire about painting the restaurant .   Th e certified letter was sent and we have not 
received notification that they have received it.  The Post Office gives three 



attempts to deliver then the letter will be returned to the sender.  Aust asked who 
will be notifying the storefront owners regarding the downtown project costs. 
Administrator Law said a general cost estimate has already been given to owners.

Councilmember Maddax:    Councilmember Dave Maddax said the water 
tower looks great with the purple letters.

Maddax thanked the City for putting up the barricades for the Car Show.  It 
turned out to be another great event.  

MAYOR’S REPORT

  Mayor Marty Southard presented an Arbor Day Proclamation. 
Councilmember Jean Carder moved, seconded by Councilmember Steve Town and 
carried 5-0, to authorize to sign the Arbor Day Proclamation.

Mayor Southard would like to remind Councilmembers of the Downtown 
Open House on Tuesday.    This will be the last meeting before getting the final 
report.

Mayor Southard gave a summary about his recent Mayor’s conference in 
Junction City.  A lot of discussion was from other Cities also doing new 
Comprehensive Plans.  Mayor Southard said sometimes we do things just because 
it has always been done that way, but change is good.

Mayor Southard stated the ICMA Conference this year is in Kansas City on 
October 16 th  - 18 th .  These are held all over the United States so having it here in 
our area is exciting.    Mayor Southard encourages Councilmembers to attend if 
their schedules allow for it.

 ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT

 Water Tower Logo:   City Administrator Nathan Law presented pricing for 
a wildcat logo on the water tower.  Councilmember Maddax had asked 
Administrator Law to get bids.    Administrator Law said the bids came in for a 
logo at $3,500 per logo or $7,000 for both sides of the tower.  Councilmember 
Ma ddax would like to see the logo s on the water tower.  Councilmember Jean 
Carder said if we were just starting the painting  process  that might make the price 



lower, but since it is already painted that would not be spending money wisely. 
Carder would rather see the money going to a vehicle that was needed  and  other 
Councilmembers agreed.

Health Insurance:  Administrator Law presented several different options 
for health insurance.    Our current carrier is Blue Cross Blue Shield of Kansas. 
Our renewal rate from BCBS increased 18%.  Staff got several other bids from 
other companies. 

MPR provides lower out-of-pocket maximums compared to BCBS, but 
does not include copays for regular office visits, preventive care, prescription 
drugs, advanced imaging or emergency room visits.  This has   the potential to 
impact employees more than the current plan.  

Midwest Public Risk is a self-funded risk pool, completely funded by 
member organizations, but claims are administered through Cigna or Humana 
depending on the plan/claim.

Councilmembers had discussion .   Councilmember David Cannon moved, 
seconded by Councilmember  Jean Carder and carried 5-0, to renew with BCBS for 
2016-2017.

Soccer Practice Field:  City Administrator Nathan Law said everyone has 
probably heard by now about the soccer field parking.   This has been a gravel lot 
for over 3 years.  USD 416 had been given 2 years by the Planning Commission to 
pave the lot.  The District does not want to commit to a date for paving.  The 
Planning Commission has strict rules regarding this.  Councilmembers had 
discussion.  The Council said the Soccer Club  should attend the next Planning 
Commission meeting on May 25, 2016 at 7 p.m.

Councilmember Aust:  Councilmember Aust asked who was responsible for 
the damage done during the water breaks.  City Administrator Nathan Law said 
this will be a discussion with People’s Service.

Aust asked if we heard from KCPL regarding the hanging of the lights that 
Christmas will be here before we know it.  Administrator Law said there are height 
regulations and we need to see what will be happening with the Downtown.

Aust asked if the City was getting a rec tax.  Administrator Law replied this 
is not driven by the City it would be looked at with options.



Aust would like a job description for a City Planner.  The Economic 
Development Group suggested the City get one.  Administrator Law stated that 
come with the Comprehensive Plan.  He will get a job description for that 
particular job.

 ADJOURNMENT

At  7:27   p.m. Councilmember  David Cannon   moved,  seconded by  
Councilmember Dave Maddax to adjourn the meeting.  Motion carried 5-0.

    Approved:

______________________________
              Marty Southard, Mayor

    Attest:
______________________________
    Traci Storey, City Clerk


